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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This group of buildings, formerly associated with a grist and saw mi1ling
tsiness, 1s Tocated on the southeast side of San Mar Road just south of Mt. Lena

in Washington County, Maryland. The dwelling 1s constructed on a slope and faces
cast.

The house 1s a three-bay structure built of roughly coursed local 1imestone.
It is one story high at the front elevation, but because {t is buflt into a bank, the
west elevation is a full two stories. No decorative work {s associated with the
masonry. A one-story stone kitchen wing extends to the south (see below).

On both the east and west facades, the fenestration at ground level consists
of a central door with a window on either side. The second story of the west facade,
which now has three windows, once had a central door as well, as indicated by
alterztions in the masonry and surviving late 19th century photographs. The original
windows have wide frames joined with wooden pegs. All the windows on these two

- facades have nine-over-six sash and modern louvered shutters.

— The main (east) entrance 1s framed similarly to the windows and includes a
four-1ight transom. The door has six raised panels backed with vertical planks and
held to the frame with long strap hinges. 01d photographs of the house show the
door cpposite the front entrance in the second story of the west elevation: this
door had no transom and opened onto a small, balustraded deck which also served as a
roof ocver the door below. Some time after the 19th century photograph was made,
the upper story door was converted to a window and a three-bay, one-story porch with
elaborate gingerbread replaced the smaller entrance porch. The present porch is
supported by turned posts trimmed with scroll-cut brackets.

The roof is sheathed with modern asphalt shingles and terminates with barge boards
set directly against the end walls. A course of cornice molding finishes the eaves.
Brick chimneys are located inside each gable end.

On the interior, the main or upper story of the house is bisected by a stair and
entrance hall. Although the stair is placed prominently, it serves no purpose other
than to provide access to the attic. Much of the interior woodwork retains what
appears to be original paint.in dark brown and blue with marbeled base boards. North
of the hallway is a large parlor room with a fireplace centered in its end wall.
The mantel here has a large bead finishing the inner edge, surrounded by a course of
diagonal reeding, which is framed by a strip of applied quarter round molding. South
of the hallway are two smaller rooms with plainer trim. B
In 1976 a stone addition was built to the main house. Constructed of native
1imestone matching that used in the original building, it is a two-story, gable-roofed
—~ extension which faces southeast. From the west facade of the house, {its present
principal elevation, the gable end of the addition is visible. The angle of its .
roof is similar to the older house, and window frames and sash match as well. The
southeast elevation of the addition, which cannot be seen from the public road or from

the front or back of the mafn house, is very contemporary in design with recessed solar
panels fueling the heating system.

_ SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #1. -
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(DESCRIPTION, continued)

The house is in excellent condition and stands on a tract containing 32.67
acres. To the northeast is a large frame bank barn set on fieldstone foundations.
A small service kitchen or wash house is located just southeast of the house. It is
of frame construction sheathed with board and batten siding and has a large exterior
stone chimney at its north end.

A sawmill is said to have been located about 100 yards east of the house, and
a large 2%-story grist mill was located west of the dwelling, along the San Mar Road.

The old photograph mentioned above shows a picket fence surrounding the house
- and an additional outbuilding located to its east.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
The complex of structures consists of a stone house, a frame bank barn, and

related outbuildings.

At one time it also included a grist mill and saw mill.

The

buildings have contributed much to the agriculture, commerce, and industry in Washington

County, Maryland.
agricultural community.
process grain into more marketable flour and meal.

available.

of the period as well as some unusual architectural features.

As a grist milling complex, these buildings served the local
The grist mill offered an opportunity for nearby farmers to

Grist milling was a major industry
in Washington County where grain was an important crop and water power was readily
The house, which appears to have been built during the last decade of the
18th century or the early years of the 19th century, displays regional characteristics

Much of {ts original

interior woodwork remains intact, even retaining the original paint in some rooms.

The new wing on the house is an example of the compatible contemporary additions that
can be made to such vernacular stone farmhouses.
"Murray's Mi11," was in operation through the 19th century.

The mi1l on this property,known as

The earliest recorded transaction which could be found for this farm was a deed
made April 14, 1796, when Jacob Woolfkill purchased 176/% acres of "Resurvey on Manheim"

from Joseph Bowman at a cost of L4.10s per acre (0/420).

Woolfkill's will was probated

October 16, 1824, at which time the plantation on which he had 1ived was given to his
three children, John and Jacob Woolfkill and Polly Seyster, wife of Michael Seyster
Shortly thereafter, John and Jacob sold 58-3/4 acres, presumably a portion

(Wi11 253).

of their share of the estate, to Michael Seyster.
rights for a mi11 (HH/1092).
to John Fouch who, in turn, sold them to John Murray and William Melavery of Franklin

County, Pennsylvania in 1839 (00/271, UU/45).

This transaction included water
In 1833 Michael Seyster and his wife sold the 58-3/4 acres

By 1868 the property was in the possession

of Susan Emmert, widow of Andrew Emmert, when it was purchased by Jacob Bishop (LBN2/689).
From Bishop the property descended to Katie Ruch who sold i1t to Jennie G. Ridenour

and John L. Ridenour in 1904 (135/528).

It remained in the Ridenour family until 1968

when it was purchased by the present owners (199/531, 199/533, 480/471).
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ABSTRACT

WA-II-164 18th Century
Stone House, San Mar Road

Mt. Lena Vicinity

private

This complex of structures consisting of a
stone house, a frame barn and related outbuildings,
which included at one time a grist and saw mill is
significant for its architecture and for its contri-
bution to commerce and industry in Washington County,
Maryland. It is also important as a farm which was
agriculturally productive for many years. The house
which appears to have been built during the last dec-
ade of the 18th century or the early years of the 19th
century, displays regional characteristics of the period
as well as some unusual architectural features. Also,
much of the original interior woodwork remains intact
and even retains its original paint in some rooms. The
mill on this property known as 'Murray's Mill" was in
operation through the 19th century.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This group of buildings, formerly associated with a grist and saw milling business is located
on the west side of San Mar Road just south of Mt. Lena in Washington County, Maryland. The
dwelling is constructed on a slope and faces east.

The house is a three bay structure built of roughly coursed local limestone. It is one story
in height at its front elevation, but because it is built into a bank, its west elevation

has two full stories. No decorative work is associated with the masonry. A one story frame
kitchen wing extends to the sgouth.

Windows and doors appear to have been placed symmetrically in the walls. Original windows .-
have wide frames joined with wooden pegs. Nine over six light double hung sashes are flanked
with louvered shutters. The center window at the second story of the west elevation was
originally a door as indicated by alteratinns to the masonry and by late 19th century photo-~-
graphs.

The main entrance is located in the central bay of the east elevation. It is framed simi-
larly to the windows and includes a four light transom. The door has six raised panels
backed with vertical planks and held to the frame with long strap hinges. O0ld photographs of
the house show that a door was located opposite the front entrance in the second story of the
rear or west elevation. This door had no transom and opened into a small balustraded deck
which served also as a roof over a door into the lower portion of the house. At some time
after the 19th century photograph was made, the upper story door was converted to a window
and a three bay one story porch with elaborate ginger bread replaced the small entrance .ca.
The present porch 1s supported by turned posts trimmed with scroll cut brackets.

The roof is sheathed with modern asphalt shingles and terminates with barge boards set direc-
tly against the end walls. A course of cornice molding finishes the eaves. Brick chimneys
are located inside each gable end.

The main or upper story of the house is bisected by a stair and entrance hall. Although the
stair is placed prominently, it serves no purpose other than to provide access to the attic.
Much of the interior woodwork retains what appears to be original paint in dark brown and
blue with marbeféd base boards. North of the hallway is a large parlor room with a fireplace
centered in its end wall. The fireplace is trimmed with a mantel displaying much decorative
reeding. A large bead finishes the inner edge of the mantel surrounded by a course of diag-
onal reeding which is framed by a strip of applied quarter round molding.

South of the hallway are two smaller rooms with plainer trim.

The house is in excellent condition and stands on a tract containing 32.67 acres. Northeast
of the house 1s a large frame bank barn set on fieldstone foundations. A small service kit-
chen or wash house of frame construction sheathed with board and batten siding 1s located
just southeast of the house. It has a large exterior stone chimney at its north end.

A sawmill is said to have been located about 100 yards east of the house, and a large two
and one half story grist mill was located west of the dwelling, along San Mar Road.

The old photograph shows that a picket fence surrounded the house and that an additiona?’
outbuilding was located to its east.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This complex of structures consisting of a stone house, a frame bank barn and related out-
buildings, which included at one time a grist and saw mill is significant for its architec-
ture and for its contribution to commerce and industry in Washington County, Maryland. It
is also important as a farm which was agriculturally productive for many years. The house
which appears to have been built during the last decade of the 18th century or the early
years of the 19th century, displays regional characteristics of the period as well as some
unusual architectural features. Also, much of the original interior woodwork remains intact
and even retains its original paint in some rooms. The mill on this property known as
"Murray's Mill" was in operation through the 19th century.

The earliest recorded transaction which could be found for this farm was a deed made April
= 1796, when Jacob Woolfkill purchased 176 1/2 acres of '"Resurvey on Manheim" from Joseph
L. .man at a cost of B4,108 per acre. (0/420). Jacob Wolfkill's will was probated October
16, 1824, at which time the plantation on which he had lived was given to his three children,
John and Jacob Wolflill and Polly Syster, wife of Michael Syster. (Will Liber C/Folio 253).
Shortly thereafter John and Jacob sold 58 3/4 acres, presumably a portion of their share of
the estate to Michael Seyster. This transaction included water rights for a mill (HH/1092).
In 1833, Michael Seyster and his wife sold the 58 3/4 acres to John Fouch who, in turn, sold
to John Murray and William Melavery of Franklin County, Pa. in 1939, (00/271, UU/45). By
1868, the property was in the possession of Susan Emmert, widow of Andrew Emmert when it was
purchased by Jacob Bishop. (LBN2/689). From Jacob Bishop the property descended to Katie
Ruch who sold it to Jennie G. Ridenour and John L. Ridenour in 1904, (135/528). It re-
mained in the Ridenour family until 1968 when it was purchased by the present owners. (199/
531, 199/533, 480/471).

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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